ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 1, 2011
9:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Wel echowski, Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan, Vice Chair
Senator Al bert Kookesh

Senat or Kevin Meyer

Senat or Cathy G essel

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 39

"An Act ratifying an interstate conpact to elect the President
and Vice-President of the United States by national popular
vote; and making related changes to statutes applicable to the
selection by voters of electors for candidates for President and
Vice-President of the United States and to the duties of those
el ectors.™

- HEARD AND HELD.

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 4
Honori ng Presi dent Reagan on the 100th anniversary of his birth.

- MOVED SJR 4 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 39

SHORT TITLE: U.S. PRESI DENTI AL ELECTI ON COVPACT
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) FRENCH

01/ 19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/14/11

01/19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/19/11 (S) STA, JUD, FIN

02/ 01/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SJR 4

SHORT TI TLE: HONORI NG RONALD REAGAN

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 1, 2011



SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) HUGG NS

REFERRALS

01/ 26/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME -
01/ 26/ 11 (S) STA
02/ 01/ 11 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR HOLLI S FRENCH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 39.

ANDY MODEROW

Staff to Senator Hollis French
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned provi sions of SB 39.

LAURA BROAD

Nat i onal Popul ar Vote

M nneapolis, M

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support
provi sions of the bill.

SEAN PATTERSON, representing hinself
Anchor age, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

DON THERI NG, representing hinself
Del ta Junction, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

ALLI SON GLOVER, representing herself
Anchor age, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

CAROLYN BROWN, representing herself
Juneau, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

JIM Q@ LL, representing hinself
Fai r banks, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

MARJORI E MENZI, representing herself
Juneau, AK

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2-

of

of

of

of

of

of

SB 39 and expl ai ned

SB 39.

SB 39.

SB 39.

SB 39.

SB 39.

February 1,

2011



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 39.

JOHN MANLY

Staff to Senator Charlie Huggins

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Explained provisions of SIJR 4 for the
sponsor.

JERRY MCCUTCHEQN, representing hinself
Anchor age, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SIR 4.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:01: 07 AM

CHAIR BI LL WELECHOASKI called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Paskvan, Kookesh, Meyer, G essel and Chair
W el echowski .

SB 39-U.S. PRESI DENTI AL ELECTI ON_COVPACT

CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI announced SB 39 to be the first order of
busi ness to cone before the commttee.

SENATOR HOLLI'S FRENCH, sponsor of SB 39, explained that this
bill was in the Senate |ast year, and it is designed to ensure a
basic truth is upheld; the person who gets the nobst votes wll
beconme the president of the United States. He stated that the
| ast decade has seen candi dates being el ected president wthout
havi ng the hi ghest popular vote total. He further noted that, if
SB 39 is enacted into law, Alaska would join with a group of
states formng a conpact to pledge its electoral votes to the
candi dat e receiving the nost popul ar votes.

9: 04: 07 AM

ANDY MODEROW staff to Senator Hollis French, explained that SB
39 provides that any state of the United States and the District
of Colunbia can becone a nenber of this agreenent by enacting
the agreenment. He further explained that SB 39 sets out the
right of the people in the nenber states to vote for president
by statew de popular election. He said Article 3 allows that,
before the neeting and voting by the presidential electors, each
chief election official of each nmenber state shall determ ne the
nunber of votes for each presidential candidate, and the states

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 1, 2011



shall add the votes together to reach a national popular vote
total.

9:06: 16 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI asked about the issue of recounts between
st at es.

SENATOR FRENCH said nothing in SB 39 affects the right of each
state to count its own votes in its own manner. M. Fenum ai
woul d still be the person in charge should Al aska agree to join
this conpact.

9:07: 25 AM

MR. MODEROW further explained that SB 39 certifies the
appointnment of the elector slate for the candidate associated
with that national popular vote wnner. Six days before the
meeting and voting by the presidential electors, the nenbers
shall nake a final determ nation of the nunber of popular votes
cast in the state and shall comunicate that to other states for
t he purposes of the conpact. The chief election official of each
menber state shall release a conclusive statenment of the nunber
of votes cast for each candidate. He also explained that if
there is a tie for the national popular vote w nner, the
certifying official of each nenber state wll certify the
appoi ntment of the electors nom nated by the vote in the state.

9:08:43 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOMBKI asked if the chief election official referred
to Ms. Gail Fenunm ai.

SENATOR FRENCH responded yes, currently.

9: 09: 08 AM

MR. MODEROW then discussed what would occur if a nenber state
sends a different nunber of electors than they have electoral
votes; in that case, the national popular vote w nner would
nom nate the presidential electors, and the state election
official would certify the appointnment of those nom nees. He
noted that the bill also creates a blackout period requiring
t hat nenber states cannot withdraw from the conpact for a period
of time before and after the election.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked how many states have passed the conpact.

MR. MODEROW responded that he thinks 20 states, but he is not
certain.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 1, 2011



9:10: 53 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked if the chief executive of each nenber
state refers to the governor.

MR. MODEROW responded yes. He further stated that definitions
are provided on page 3, line 28, through page 4, |ine 21.

9:11: 44 AM

MR. MODEROW expl ai ned that section 2 clarifies that current |aw
will stay on the books until enough states have activated the
conpact .

9:12:15 AM

MR. MODEROW further explained that SB 39 contains provisions for
how t he conpact will be enacted.

9:12: 52 AM

LAURA BROAD, testifying on behalf of National Popular Vote,
stated she spent eight years as a representative in the
M nnesota state |egislature, where she was a co-sponsor of the
Nat i onal Popular Vote Act. She said the National Popular Vote
agreenent would guarantee the presidency to the candidate who
wi ns the nost popular votes. The bill has been enacted in seven
states, and has been enacted by jurisdictions possessing a total
of 74 electoral votes, which is 27 percent of the votes
necessary to trigger the conpact. She said that the shortcom ngs
of the current statutory system stem from the w nner-take-all
rule, which effectively awards a state's electoral votes to the
candidate who wins the nobst popular votes in that state. The
w nner-take-all rule has permtted a candidate to wn the
presi dency w thout wi nning the nost popular votes in 1 of 56
presidential elections, which is 1 in 14 tinmes. She further
stated that Article 11, Section 1, of the United States
Constitution gives states the exclusive authority and excl usive
control over the manner of awarding electoral votes; thus, the
wi nner-take-all rule is not in the US. Constitution, but is
actually a matter of state | aw.

9:17:34 AM

M5. BROAD explained that Miine and Nebraska use a different
system from the other states, which shows a state's right to
award electors under its own rules. Under the national popular
vote system all electoral votes would be awarded to the
candidate who wins the nobst popular votes. Two-hundred-seventy
el ectoral votes are needed to ratify the conpact. SB 39 also
preserves the Electoral College, but in a way that nmakes sure
t hat every vote is equal.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 1, 2011



9:19: 29 AM
M5. BROAD further stated that SB 39 would not abolish the
El ectoral College, nor would it render the Electoral College

irrelevant; instead, it utilizes a state's right to benefit the
people of Alaska and the people of all states. She noted the
bill is not an end-run around the Constitution, because it very
explicitly states in Article 11, Section | that state

| egi sl atures have the full authority and the responsibility to
award el ectors as they see fit.

M5. BROAD noted the founders originally intended that snal
states have an electoral advantage through an additional two
el ectoral votes, but the w nner-take-all system underm nes the
original intent. Candidates now becone focused solely on
battl eground states, because influence is no |onger derived from
t he nunber of electoral votes.

9:21:23 AM

M5. BROAD concluded by saying that SB 39 would ensure that
people know their vote counts, would preserve the electoral
college, fix shortcomngs in the current system and recognize
and utilize an explicit states' right set forth by the founders
in the constitution.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if in a close election, a small state |ike
Al aska could decide to give its three electoral votes in order
to effectively change the results. What would be the penalty?

M5. BROAD responded that interstate conpacts are authorized
within the constitution to give sovereign states the authority
to enter into legally binding contracts. She explained that
states are not allowed to breach those contracts; states that
enter into the conpact can choose to |eave, but only under
provisions of the <contract. She noted this is a legally
enforceable tool, and that contracts actually take precedence
over statutes.

9:27.:53 AM
SENATOR MEYER asked how many states are currently in the
conpact .

M5. BROAD replied that seven states are currently in the
conpact, and those states possess a total of 27 percent of the
el ectoral votes needed to trigger the conpact. If Al aska passes
this bill, nothing changes until the trigger of 220 electora
votes is reached.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 1, 2011



SENATOR MEYER asked if Alaska would still be just a fly-over
state, in terns of presidential canpaigning.

M5. BROAD responded that M nnesota currently has a governor who
didn't win any of the five largest cities in the state, yet he
won the governor's race tw ce because he drove up the vote in
rural and suburban areas. If this conpact was adopted,
presidential candi dates would need to reach out to a broad swath
of people in order to wn.

9:30: 37 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL noted that Mnnesota is not one of the states
that have ratified the agreenent.

M5. BROAD responded that she is expecting it to be passed this
year .

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if she woul d explain the blackout period.

M5. BROAD responded that purpose of the blackout period is to
bind the states to the conpact for the length of the election
canpai gn, July 20th through January 20th, because voters should
know t he rul es of engagenent.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked how the national popular vote works in
connection with the El ectoral Coll ege.

9:33:01 AM

M5. BROAD responded that each state currently has the power to
deal with electors in its own way. Under the current system
electors wll always align with the candidate who wns the
popul ar vote. If a denocratic candidate wins the popular vote, a
denocratic slate of electors would go to the capitol and cast
ballots. Under a national popular vote, that is no different;
the slates are aligned with the candidate winning the majority
of the popul ar vote.

CHAI R W ELECHOMBKI asked about the recount issue.

M5. BROAD replied that recounts would continue to operate under
state statutes, and that does not change under the national
popul ar vot e.

9: 35: 04 AM

SEAN PATTERSON, representing hinself, Anchorage, supported SB
39, and stated it is probably the first tine he has agreed with

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 1, 2011



Senator French. He noted that our founding fathers understood
that our denobcracy is a growng, living and changing entity;
under the current system nmany states don't count. Qur republic
has gotten to the point where each vote should be counted.

9: 38: 55 AM

DON THERI NG, representing hinself, Delta Junction, stated he
supports SB 39 because the Electoral College system needs to
nore accurately represent the country as it is today.

9: 39: 54 AM
ALLI SON G.OVER, representing herself, Anchorage, said she
bel i eves passage of SB 39 woul d be good for Al aska.

9:40: 24 AM

CAROCLYN BROWN, representing herself, Juneau, stated she has
lived in Alaska since 1965, including Anchorage, Palner, and
Juneau, and has worked throughout the state as a public health
and OBGYN physician. Dr. Brown noted that six states and the
District of Colunbia have already passed the conpact: Hawaili,
IIlinois, Maryland, New Jersey, New York, and the D strict of
Col unmbi a. She supports SB 39 because she is commtted to
parti ci patory denocr acy, and she asked for r easoned
consi deration and thoughtful debate on this issue.

9:43: 24 AM
JIM Q@LL, student, University of Al aska, Fairbanks, testified in
support of SB 39.

9:44: 07 AM

MARJORIE MENZI, Juneau, stated she was here as a citizen in
support of SB 39. As a civics educator, social studies teacher,
and voter registrar, she said she believes the president and
vi ce-president should be determ ned by nationw de popul ar vote.
She stated that according to a recent poll, 70 percent of
Al askans agree. She further stated that the current systemis a
di sincentive to voters in Al aska.

9:49: 08 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI cl osed public testinmony and held SB 39 in
commttee for further consideration.

SJR 4- HONCRI NG RONALD REAGAN

9:49: 46 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOMSKI announced SJR 4 to be the next order of
busi ness.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 1, 2011



SENATOR CHARLIE HUGA NS, sponsor of SJR 4, explained that the
resolution should not require much evaluation, but it s
important. SJR 4 recognizes the acconplishments of President
Ronal d Regan on the 100t h anniversary of his birthday. He stated
that President Regan had a profound inpact on the state of
Al aska, which nany people don't recogni ze.

9:51:30 AM

JOHN MANLY, staff to Senator Charlie Huggins, gave a brief
summary of SIJR 4, which recognizes the acconplishnents
| eadershi p, and vision of Ronald Regan. M. Manly noted that, as
listed in SIR 4, President Regan was involved in several Al aska-
specific events, including advocating for very limted federal
control of Alaska |lands, state control of the Al aska railroad,

nmeeting with Pope John Paul 11 in Fairbanks, signing reparations
paynments for Aleuts displaced in Wrld War |II, si gni ng
provisions of the small business developnent program and

funding village health clinics.

9:54: 38 AM

JERRY MCCUTCHEQON, Anchorage, said he opposes SIR 4, and feels it
is a political resolution. He stated that Ronald Regan left the
country trillions of dollars in debt, and there was even a
guestion as to whether he was really in charge; as far as the
Al eut reparations, they only received a fraction of what the
Japanese received, and the Japanese internnent canps were
| uxurious conpared to the conditions endured by the Aleuts. M.
McCut cheon disputed every positive point listed in the
resol ution.

9:57: 30 AM
SENATOR HUGA NS replied that in general people should not speak
ill of the dead; further, if you can't be positive, just be

quiet. He noted that does not necessarily apply in this case
and while he appreciated M. MCutcheon's testinony, Ronald
Regan does have a positive |legacy in nost people's mnds.

9: 58: 23 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI cl osed public testinony.
SENATOR PASKVAN asked if any standard applies to recognizing

presidential |egacies; for instance, should the Ilegislature
recogni ze the 100th birthday anniversary of each president?

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 1, 2011



SENATOR HUGA NS responded it is fair to say the |egislature does
not have a system

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI stated that was a good question. It can be
difficult to choose which president to honor.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if SJR 4 acconplishes anything, such as
nam ng a nountain after Ronald Regan, or is it just a piece of
paper.

SENATOR HUGGE NS responded that it is not just a piece of paper
but a spirit, and it doesn't |ead to any action.

9:59: 15 AM
SENATOR MEYER noved to report SIJR 4 from comrmittee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and attached fiscal note(s).

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI announced that w thout objection, SIR 4 noved
fromthe Senate State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

9:59:15 AM

CHAIR W ELECHOWBKI adjourned the meeting of the Senate State
Affairs standing conmttee at 9:59 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 1, 2011



